Delaware Cancer Consortium  
Page 2 of 3

[bookmark: _GoBack]                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          	Delaware Cancer Consortium
Advisory Council
January 19, 2016
Minutes-APPROVED
The Outlook at the Duncan Center
500 West Loockerman Street
Dover, DE 

Attendees



	Members
	

	Attended – via phone
	David Bentz – DE House of Representatives

	Attended
	Ruth Briggs-King – DE House of Representatives

	Did Not Attend
	Albert Shields, designee for John C. Carney, Jr. – U.S. Congress

	Attended – via phone
	Stephen Grubbs, MD – American Society of Clinical Oncologists

	Attended 
	Bethany Hall-Long, RNC, PhD – University of Delaware/Delaware Senate

	Attended
	Patricia Hoge, PhD – American Cancer Society

	Attended – via phone
	Rita Landgraf, Department of Health and Social Services

	Did Not Attend
	Meg Maley, RN, BSN – Welldoc, Inc.

	Did Not Attend
	David McBride – Delaware Senate

	Attended
	Nicholas Petrelli, MD –Christiana Care -  Helen F. Graham Cancer Center

	Did Not Attend
	Rishi Sawhney, MD – Bayhealth Medical Center

	Did Not Attend
	David Small – DE Department of Natural Resources  & Environmental Control

	Attended
	James Spellman, MD, FACS, FSSO – Beebe Medical Center - Tunnell Cancer Center

	
	

	Staff

	

	Attended
	Lisa Henry – Delaware Division of Public Health

	Attended
	Heather Brown – Delaware Division of Public Health

	Attended
	Rosemary Doughten – Delaware Division of Public Health

	Attended
	Karyl Rattay – Delaware Division of Public Health

	
	

	
	

	Public/Guests
	

	
	


Welcome/Review/Approval of Minutes



Acting Chair Senator Bethany Hall-Long began the meeting at 8:35 am by recognizing the great work that Bill Bowser did as the Chair of the Consortium.  All members thanked him for his many years of service.  Dr. Nick Petrelli made a motion to accept the minutes from the July 20, 2015 meeting.  Dr. Jim Spellman seconded the motion.  A vote was taken and minutes were approved as written.

Old & New Business

Legislative Update
Acting Chair Senator Hall-Long advised that the budget is a little lean but that tobacco is still a big interest to the group.  Presently there are no specific bills that are being planned to be introduced with anything that relates to the Delaware Cancer Consortium (DCC).  Secretary Rita Landgraf commented that she was encouraged at the Health Fund discussions because there were many members of the public in attendance and that their voices were heard.  The Governor’s recommended budget will come out Thursday, January 28th.  She added that there was interest in the preventative side and that we must keep it as a focus for the Joint Finance Committee (JFC) hearings.

Senator Hall-Long advised the group that Senator David McBride sends his wishes as he has been very open with his own battle with cancer.  She said he has shared with other legislators how important the work of the DCC is in helping with early screening.  She added that he feels it has saved his life.  

Representative Ruth Briggs-King said that it was good that the DCC addressed e-cigarettes and added that it was a good preventative measure to have them included in the Clean Indoor Air Act (CIAA).  Senator Hall-Long advised the group that members of the DCC are always welcome in Legislative Hall

Committee Structure Update
Heather Brown stated that the Consortium has been pared down.  It now consists of the Early Detection and Prevention Committee – chaired by Dr. Stephen Grubbs, the Tobacco & Other Risk Factors combined with the Communication & Public Education Committee – co-chaired by Dr. Patricia Hoge and Senator Bethany Hall-Long, and the Delaware Cancer Registry Advisory Committee (DCRAC) – co-chaired by Dr. Nick Petrelli and Dr. Paul Silverman.

Dr. Petrelli commented on DCRAC, advising that it is basically a combination of the old Quality Cancer Care and Data committees.  At a recent meeting that included the members of the Delaware Cancer Registrars Association and registrars of the Maryland Cancer Registry, the All Payers Claim Database (APCD) was brought up.  Dr. Petrelli advised that Dr. Spellman had been very involved in trying to bring the APCD to fruition five years ago.  Both doctors spoke with Laura Howard, Executive Director of the Health Care Commission, regarding the implementation of the APCD.  Secretary Landgraf informed the group that the APCD would fall under the Innovation Payment Committee of the SIMS grant and that there has been some very rich discussion around the APCD.  She added that work still needs to be done with the payers but in looking at other states, they have been very successful with their implementation of the database.  She added that it is critically important, if we are to address health spending, that we need to look at the information that could be accessed with an APCD.  Tom Brown of Nanticoke is the chair of the Payment Committee and she suggested that Dr. Spellman and/or Dr. Petrelli contact him directly.  Dr. Grubbs stated that information is being used from a database that can actually show cost savings return.  The states of Maine and New Hampshire use it and the literature is very impressive.  Dr. Spellman added that there was a template for legislation written but there has been no movement since the consortium left off five years ago.

Dr. Petrelli stated that DCRAC has really improved since its inception and the data is very clean.  If the APCD can be brought in, it would be very new and exciting.  Dr. Spellman advised that he would contact Tom Brown, chair of the Payment Committee.

With the merger of the Tobacco & Other Risk Factors committee and the Communication and Public Education committee, Senator Hall-Long advised that there is a little money left that is currently housed with the Delaware Community Foundation (DCF) and that the committee must decide what to do with it.  It will be part of the discussion at the committee meeting later today.  One possibility is to work in conjunction with Delaware State University to do something on health promotion.

Delaware Cancer Treatment Program (DCTP) 
Dr. Grubbs advised that he has received the Behavioral Risk Factor Survey (BRFS) data on colonoscopy and sigmoidoscopy and that we are at 76.5% which puts us in the top five in the United States.  He also stated his committee will look at the data to be sure Delaware is still on track as we move forward with decisions made around the new mammography screening recommendations.  The Delaware Cancer Consortium has been nominated for the 2016 80% by 2018 National Achievement Awards from the National Colorectal Cancer Roundtable (NCCRT) for the collective work being done by the Consortium in colorectal cancer.

With the President charging the Vice President to find a cure for cancer, this is an opportunity to reach out and be proactive Dr. Hoge stated.  There should be a discussion on early detection and prevention and that Delaware has been a leader in that area.  Dr. Grubbs recently sat on a panel at the University of Pennsylvania with the Vice President and he said that he is very dedicated to his task and wants to accelerate measures that are already being taken.  He is also looking into prevention, cancer care delivery and new innovations available, and access to clinical trials everywhere.  Senator Hall-Long agreed that we need to capitalize on this opportunity and that our message is resonating.  Dr. Petrelli added that it is good news that Biden is coming back to Delaware and he is still much respected in the state and legislature.

Heather Brown advised that since the Delaware Cancer Treatment Program eligibility regulations changed in July 2014, the program is finally seeing a reduction in claims being paid.  The number of clients enrolled in the program has decreased about 70% since July 2014.  Ms. Brown stated due to this reduction there is a savings in the Delaware Cancer Treatment Program.  In effort to ensure this money is not lost, she asked for approval for the money to be repurposed for cancer prevention with a focus on Tobacco and Other Risk Factors.  Ms. Brown also stated the money will not be directly given to the Tobacco and Other Risk Factors Committee, however if the committee has suggestions on innovative ways to use the funds to please bring them forward.  The present members of the council agreed on this plan.  Dr. Petrelli inquired about co-pays since they can still be outrageous and an issue with oncology drugs even if a patient is insured.  Lisa Henry answered that when the regulations were changed, co-pays were also addressed.  If the maximum out of pocket expense is more than 15% of income, individuals can apply to the program and be considered under insured.  The program will not pay insurance premiums, but will pay co-pays if the individual is approved for a financial hardship waiver.  To date, two people have applied for the financial hardship waiver and both have been approved.  Dr. Grubbs asked how many have been transitioned from the program to insurance on the marketplace.  That number will be provided at the next meeting or sent out via email to AC members.  Another question posed was how does the public find out information on the program?  Ms. Henry advised that information is in the Medicaid provider bulletin, it is provided to care coordinators and also to providers through Screening for Life.  Dr. Petrelli suggested also including information in the Delaware Medical Journal which Ms. Henry advised that they would do in the future.  Dr. Hoge suggested the program provide a one page information sheet to give criteria on how to get help with screening and prevention.  Dr. Rattay thanked all those involved in getting the regulations changed and helping people obtain comprehensive insurance.  She added that it feels like the transition to the new program is working.  

Dr. Hoge recommended that the data be shared to illustrate when we make this kind of investment, that it is money well spent because of the success of the program.  It shows we are accountable and also the success of investing in early detection and prevention.  

There was some discussion on the Blue Book that will be done next year in 2017 and how an accomplishment book was published in the past.  Some members liked the idea of an accomplishment document especially with a new administration coming next year.  Ms. Henry advised that she and Ms. Brown would begin to gather information for an accomplishment document.
 
Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 9:30 am.

Meeting documentation is available on the DCC website (www.healthydelaware.org) or by contacting Rosemary Doughten (Rosemary.Doughten@state.de.us or 302-744-1000).
Future Meeting (s)




Next Meeting:  
Tuesday, April 19, 2016,  8:30 am -10:00 am.
Outlook at the Duncan Center
Dover, DE  
image1.png
DELAWARE
CANCER

CONSORTIUM




image2.png
DELAWARE
CANCER

CONSORTIUM




